
 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Meeting 

November 22, 2016 

 

Present:  Myles Mickle, Colin James, Stefan Golec, Evelyn Weeks, Steve Adams 

 

Also Present:  Shane O’Keefe, Interim Municipal Manager; Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk; Nancy 

& Jim McAuliffe; Douglas MacPhee; Stewart Reed; Deborah Wright 

 

Press:  KMO, FACT8; Tory Jones, Eagle Times  

 

Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by President Myles Mickle. 

  

Additions to the Agenda for Routine Administrative Matters and/or Pressing Matters that will 

require ratification at a future meeting:  None 

 

Approve Minutes of November 8, 2016: Stefan Golec made the motion to approve the minutes of 

November 8, 2016 as printed.  Motion was seconded by Steve Adams.  Motion passed. 

 

Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: (3 minutes per person):  

 Jim McAuliffe stated that he wanted to express his disappointment in the Board in its 

decision to release the previous Municipal Manager.  McAuliffe asked if this Board wanted 

to get rid of Stearns.  Golec stated that the agreement signed between the Trustees, the 

Selectboard and Stearns prevented the Board from commenting and that we must move 

forward with the Interim Municipal Manager.  Mickle stated that McAuliffe made a fair point 

but the agreement tied the board members’ hands, that all parties involved entered into this 

agreement and he would make no comment.  McAauliffe then asked the Board if they had a 

plan of where in the budget the funds would come from to pay former Manager Stearns 

according to this agreement, then pay Interm Manager O’Keefe and to pay for the 10
th

 police 

officer recently approved, as none of these expenses were budgeted.  McAuliffe asked that 

this information be compiled and that this be reported at the next Trustees meeting on 

December 13. 

 Douglas MacPhee stated that he also was upset with this Board and reminded them that they 

represented the citizens of Bellows Falls.  MacPhee stated that he feels the Trustees were 

bullied by the majority of the Selectboard and were threatened that the Town Hall locks 

would be changed and Stearns would be locked out of his office and the building.  MacPhee 

also noted that when specifically asked at the November 8 meeting if they were aware of any 

plans for an interim manager, this Board stated that they were not.  MacPhee stated that he 

understood that Mickle corrected this when the Board came back from executive session but 

doesn’t believe that they were aware.  Mickle stated that this did slip his mind when asked 

but that there was not a settled plan at that time.  MacPhee stated that when there is a conflict 

between the Boards that he expected this Board to represent Bellows Falls. 

 

Manager’s Report: 

 O’Keefe thanked the Board and the residents of Bellows Falls for their warm welcome back 

to this community and he intends to keep things on track and assist in the hiring of a new 

manager in the next several months. 

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Meeting 

November 22, 2016 – Page 2 

 

 O’Keefe noted that he has met with all department heads and has discussed immediate needs 

and longer term items.  

 O’Keefe stated that he attended the shutdown meeting of the Route 5 North water project and 

there are a few minor items to button up.  O’Keefe informed the Board that the project will 

resume on April 23, 2017.  

 O’Keefe announced that the water main break that had been reported to the Board earlier had 

been found at the Colony/Pond Road intersection and this has been repaired.  O’Keefe noted 

that this break had resulted in approximately 72,000 gallons per day loss of water. 

 

Agenda: 

1. Interim Municipal Manager 

 a) Approve Interim Manager Contract retroactive to November 14, 2016 and authorize the 

Village President to sign:  Colin James made the motion that the Bellows Falls Village 

Trustees authorizes the Village President to sign the Employment Agreement with the 

Interim Municipal Manager Shane O’Keefe.  Motion was seconded by Stefan Golec.  

Motion passed. 

 

 b) Manager Appointments & Authorizations:  Colin James made the motion that the 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees authorizes the Interim Municipal Manager Shane O’Keefe 

to sign any and all documents necessary relating to any agreements or contracts 

previously approved by the Bellows Falls Village Trustees and to appoint Shane O’Keefe 

as the authorized representative to any boards, commissions, committees or appointments 

held by the previous Municipal Manager.  Motion was seconded by Stefan Golec.  Motion 

passed. 

 

2. Bellows Falls Historical Society License Agreement:  Stewart Reed was present representing 

 the Bellows Falls Historical Society and noted that there appears to be shortage of parking 

available for the wastewater project and vehicles have been parking on Historical Society 

property regularly.  Reed reminded the Board that this is a brownfields area and there are 

certain responsibilities that apply to this type of encapsulated area.  Reed stated that he has 

discussed this extensively with Wastewater Chief Operator Rob Wheeler who informed Reed 

that there would be a need for parking for at least an additional year.  Reed noted that the 

license agreement supplied in the Board packets was the exact agreement that was signed 

between the Historical Society and National Grid for a similar situation.  Reed stated that the 

agreement requires that the area be returned to its previous state and that there would be a 

$275 per month rental fee with this agreement.  Mickle noted that the agreement mentions in-

kind materials and asked if this was above the $275 being requested.  Weeks also stated she 

would like to know if this was either in-kind materials or $275 or both.  Reed stated that it 

would be $275 per month or materials valued up to the $275 per month.  O’Keefe noted that 

he had spoken briefly with Wheeler about this.  O’Keefe also stated that he felt the $275 

seemed high.  Adams stated that he felt the Board understands that the property would have 

to be returned to its previous state and that the Village would be absorbing the cost of this but 

the $275 per month over and above this was worrisome.  James asked if there had been any  

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Meeting 

November 22, 2016 – Page 3 

 

 discussion with the contractor on reimbursement of this fee.  O’Keefe stated that he did not 

have that information at this time.  Golec asked if the Historical Society had given 

permission for parking in this area.  Reed stated that they had not and Wheeler had indicated 

that he was under the impression that this area was intended for parking.  It was also noted 

that the contractor was parking its vehicles inside the gates of the Wastewater Facility and 

that the parking on Historical Society property was the Wastewater employee’s vehicles.  

MacPhee noted that Reed had indicated that this agreement was the same as a previous one 

with National Grid and noted that there is a big difference between National Grid and the  

 Village and the rental fee did bother him as well.  O’Keefe asked if an attorney had reviewed 

this agreement.  Reed stated that he didn’t want to run up legal bills.  The Board requested 

that O’Keefe get more information on this and discuss the proposed agreement with Wheeler 

and come back to the Board at the next meeting with a recommendation. 

 

3. Updates: 

a) Water Project: O’Keefe noted that the Board received copies of the Change of 

Appointment of Authorized Representative forms that need to be signed for RF3-308 

water project to appoint him as the authorized representative and to appoint Nicole Gay 

as the alternate authorized representative for this project.  Stefan Golec made the motion 

that the Bellows Falls Trustees appoint Shane O’Keefe as the authorized representative 

and Nicole Gay as the alternate authorized representative for Project RF3-308 for the 

purpose of furnishing to the State of Vermont information, data and documents 

pertaining to this project.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Deborah Wright 

asked who is acting as finance director at this time.  Mickle stated that there is currently 

not one.  Wright asked what Gay’s position as.  O’Keefe stated that Gay is continuing in 

her current position as finance assistant to the manager.  Mickle called for a vote on the 

motion.  Motion passed.  

 

b) Wastewater Project:  Discussed above. 

 

Overtime & Comp Time Reports:  Adams asked if his request regarding the breakout of shift 

coverage costs had been relayed to Chief Lake.  Bennett stated that it had and Lake has been on 

vacation.  This will be reported at the next meeting. 

 

Review Agenda Items for Next Regular Trustees Meeting – December 13, 2016:  

 Police Department – overtime vs. shift coverage costs 

 Historical Society lease agreement 

 McAuliffe request for non-budgeted costs on FY2017 budget 

 FY2017 budget status  

 Unsafe Buildings 

 

Review Agenda Items for Joint Board Meeting – November 29, 2016:  Board packets were 

provided for the Joint Board meeting next week.   

 

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Meeting 

November 22, 2016 – Page 4 

 

Approve Orders, Bills & Warrants:  Stefan Golec made the motion to approve the orders, bills 

and warrants as printed.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

Other Business:   

 Golec stated he would like to address McAuliffe’s previous comments and noted that he 

always tries to be as transparent as possible but not all information is for the public and items 

discussed in executive session should stay in executive session.  Golec also stated that these 

meetings are in the public but they are not a public free for all.  Attorney Massucco was 

present and noted that executive session gives the board members an opportunity for a 

dialogue regarding certain items, that no action can be taken in executive session with the 

exception of real estate, and that asking someone to disclose what was discussed in executive 

session, while not illegal, is unethical. 

 James congratulated the Bellows Falls Union High School football team and field hockey 

team for their recent State Championships. 

 Wright noted that she would like the Trustees to take pride in the Board and asked that the 

plaque in this building on the 2
nd

 floor, which has been broken for numerous years, be 

replaced. 

 Wright also stated that the report of the water break earlier is concerning and this could have 

been a $5,000 to $7,000 expense and what impact this had.  O’Keefe noted that Minards 

Pond is down some but in the overall volume of the pond it is not significant.  MacPhee also 

expressed concern and asked if there was any type of measure device for the Pond.  O’Keefe 

stated that he believed there was. 

 

Executive Session – Labor relations agreements with employees:  Stefan Golec made the motion 

to find that premature general public knowledge of labor relations agreements with employees 

will clearly place the municipality at a substantial disadvantage by disclosing contractual union 

agreement items.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

Stefan Golec made the motion that the Bellows Falls Trustees enter executive session at 7:25 

p.m. to discuss the labor relations agreements with employees, under provisions of Title 1, 

Section 313(a)(1) of the Vermont Statutes and invite the Village Attorney, the Interim Municipal 

Manager, and the Human Resource Coordinator to attend.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn 

Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

The Board came out of executive session at 7:55 p.m.  No announcements were made. 

 

Other Business – continued:  The Board briefly discussed the request from McAuliffe regarding 

the projected impact of  non-budgeted items mentioned and this was placed on the agenda items 

for the next meeting. 

 

Adjourn:  Stefan Golec made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.  Motion was 

seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

 

       Attest:         

        Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk 


